#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

U.S. SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY,

Appellant,

Vs.

JOHN R. MARKS, et. al.,

Appellants,

Vs.

Appellants,

Vs.

Appellants,

Vs.

JOHN R. MARKS, et. al.,

Appellants,

Vs.

Appellees.

Appellees.

# INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT MCI TELECOMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

On appeal from the Florida Public Service Commission

Richard D. Melson Hopping Boyd Green & Sams 420 First Florida Bank Building P.O. Box 6526 Tallahassee, Florida 32314

###

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is the second time that a Commission order creating toll monopoly areas has been before this Court.

In late 1984, the Commission entered two orders that divided the state into twenty-two toll monopoly areas.

(A. 18, 32) Under those orders, the right to transmit long distance telephone conversations within each area was granted exclusively to the LEC that served the area. The right to transmit long distance telephone conversations between those areas was shared by certified IXCs and, in general, by the LECs. Those orders provided that the toll monopoly areas would remain in effect on an interim basis until September 1, 1986. Prior to that date, the Commission would hold further hearings on the toll monopoly area concept. The parties favoring the retention of toll monopoly areas beyond September 1, 1986 would bear the burden of proving that their retention was required by the public interest. (A. 27-28, 34-35)

MCI and other certified IXCs appealed those orders. Ir a decision rendered on February 6, 1986, this Court upheld

This was actually the second set of Commission orders creating toll monopoly areas. In December, 1983, the Commission had created "temporary" toll monopoly areas consisting of Florida's seven LATAs pending the outcome of further proceedings to be held during 1984. (Order Nos. 12765 and 13091) The late 1984 orders therefore had the effect of permitting some competition between EAEAs that had been prohibited by the earlier "temporary" orders.

the Commission's <u>interim</u> toll monopoly areas as a "well reasoned and carefully crafted response to the legislative direction and to the public interest." <u>Microtel, Inc. v.</u> <u>Florida Public Service Commission</u>, 483 So.2d 415, 418-419 (Fla. 1986) ("Microtel II").

In upholding toll monopoly areas, the  $\underline{\text{Microtel II}}$  decision relied heavily on the transitional nature of the monopoly restrictions.

We do not read the orders under review as contemplating, nor do we understand it to be the PSC's position, that toll monopolies will continue beyond an interim period during which the transition is made from total monopoly on all services to monopoly in local services only.

\* \* \*

. . .we do not believe that it is PSC's position that it has authority to maintain permanent toll monopolies. If that position changes and is challenged after September 1986, we will examine the issue on its merits. It is premature to do so now.

483 So.2d at 419

The Court also relied on the Commission's assertion that the proponents of toll monopolies would have the burden of justifying their retention beyond September 1986. Id. at 418.

During May, 1986, the Commission held the promised hearings on the retention of toll monopoly areas. On July 14, 1986, a scant five months after this Court's decision in

Microtel II, the Commission entered its order maintaining permanent toll monopolies. This decision was made notwithstanding the Commission's finding that "none of the LECs. . provided sufficient information to reasonably calculate the maximum net revenue impact of the introduction of intraEAEA competition." (A. 11)

This appeal followed.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

MCI's major point on appeal is that the Commission lacks statutory authority to create permanent toll monopoly areas. This is solely a matter of law. The following statement of facts is relevant only to MCI's second point — that even if the Commission has such authority, it was not properly exercised in this case.

One of the Commission's major rationales for creating interim TMAs had been to provide short term "revenue stability" for the LECs. That is, the Commission wanted to allow the LECs temporarily to retain all intraEAEA toll revenues to help provide a source of contribution toward local rates during the transition from monopoly to competition. (A. 28)

A major focus of the May 1986 hearings was therefore the impact that abolition of the TMAs might have LEC revenues. 3/ Despite the importance of this issue, only two of the fourteen LECs (Southern Bell and General Telephone) provided any estimate of the financial impact of intraEAEA competition. Both companies provided "worst-case" estimates. As cross-examination revealed, neither of those estimates was reasonable.

Issues 4, 5, 6, 10 and 20 as identified in the prehearing order all dealt with the LECs' need for revenue stability and the financial impact of abolishing TMAs. (R. 45, 46, 48, 53, 65)

Southern Bell Estimate. Southern Bell estimated a net revenue loss of \$42 million. This estimate contained a number of errors and unreasonable assumptions. For example, Bell assumed that it would lose 100% of its intraEAEA toll to the IXCs (Ex. 6-264-C), despite the fact that the Commission previously granted the LECs the exclusive right to "1+" dialing for all intraEAEA calls in a decision that was not challenged on appeal. (A. 34) The LECs therefore stand to lose intraEAEA toll only from those customers who know they are dialing intraEAEA calls, and who to dial five digits (e.g. 10288 for AT&T or 10222 for MCI) to affirmatively select another carrier. (T. 564) Southern Bell faces that type of competition from IXCs today for interEAEA, intraLATA calls and has not lost 100% of that traffic. Yet Bell failed to provide any data from that market to help test the reasonableness of its 100% assumption. (T. 244-245)

General Telephone Estimate. General Telephone estimated a worst-case gross revenue loss of somewhat less than \$61.7 million (75% of its intraEAEA toll revenues) and a best-case gross revenue loss of less than \$8.2 million (10% of its intraEAEA toll revenues). (T. 93, 98-99; R. 155) These are estimates of gross revenue loss and significantly overstate the net effect on General Telephone. First, they ignore cost savings that General estimated at 12% of lost revenues. (T. 92-94) Second, they ignore offsetting access charge

revenues that General would receive from IXCs. (T. 93-94)
These access revenues actually exceed lost toll revenues on evening and nighttime calls, and, at premium access charge rates (FGD), they would replace approximately 80% of lost toll revenues from daytime calls. (Ex. 6-80-C; T. 90-91; R. 187)

Because of the importance of these revenue loss estimates, MCI broke with traditional PSC practice and filed proposed findings of fact regarding the financial impact that intraEAEA competition might have on the LECs. (R. 196-203) MCI's proposed findings used the Bell and General "worst-case" estimates as a starting point, and adjusted those estimates only for specific flaws that were admitted by Bell and General on the record. 4/ The proposed findings were thus designed to show the order of magnitude of the "worst-case" financial impact that could be supported by a reasoned review of the record. (See, R. 152-162, 183-191, 196-203)

The Commission's rulings on MCI's proposed findings of fact are telling. First, the Commission rejected MCI's proposed finding that only Southern Bell and General

For example, Bell's estimates were adjusted to correct admitted errors in access charge rates. (T. 224-226; R. 157-158, 183-186) General's estimates were adjusted to reflect the existence of admitted cost savings and admitted offsetting revenues from access charges. (T. 92-94; R. 159-160, 187-191) No attempt was made to correct Bell's assumption that it would lose 100% of intraEAEA toll traffic, since the record contained no specific figure that could be substituted.

Telephone had provided sufficient data from which to reasonably calculate the maximum net revenue impact and local rate impact of the introduction of intraEAEA competition. Instead, the Commission found that none of the LECs had provided data from which the impact of competition could be determined.

Upon consideration, we reject MCI's proposed finding of fact No. 1. None of the LECs, including General and Southern Bell, provided sufficient information to reasonably calculate the maximum net revenue impact of the introduction of intraEAEA transmission competition.

#### A. 11 (emphasis added)

Despite this lack of essential data from the IXCs, the Commission in the same order found that "the LECs have met their burden of proof and demonstrated that retention of TMAs is in the public interest." (A. 15)

Second, the Commission rejected all of MCI's proposed findings regarding the maximum dollar amounts of net revenues that Bell and General might lose to competition under worst-case conditions. (A. 12-15) MCI recognized that no one can predict precisely what percentage of intraEAEA traffic lost by the LECs to the IXCs would be carried by FGA or FGB access and generate nonpremium access charge revenues for the LECs, and what percentage would be carried by FGD access and generate premium access charge revenues.

Therefore, to establish a range of possible impacts, MCI's proposed findings had assumed alternatively that the lost

traffic would be carried by <u>premium</u> access [proposed findings 3(a), 4(a) and 5(a)] and by <u>nonpremium</u> access [proposed findings 2(a), 4(c) and 5(c)]. Strangely, the Commission rejected even the latter group of findings on the patently incorrect grounds that MCI had assumed that traffic would be carried solely through FGD (premium) access. (A. 12, 14, 15)

Third, the Commission rejected MCI's proposed findings that the resultant impact on local ratepayers (calculated to range from \$.04 to \$1.00 per customer per month) would have no substantial impact on local ratepayers. (A. 12, 13, 14, 15) These findings were rejected even though the only testimony in the record regarding customer reaction to local rate increases showed that increases of \$0.75 to \$1.00 to \$2.00 per month would have no substantial impact on customer usage or universal service. (T. 159, 264, 269-271)

In summary, the Commission concluded that the retention of TMAs was in the public interest, despite its finding that none of the proponents had put forth sufficient evidence for the Commission to quantify the impact of abolishing the TMAs on either the LECs or their ratepayers.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The telephone industry has recently undergone massive change at both the federal and state levels from one of long distance monopoly to one of long distance competition. The history of these changes was summarized by this Court in Microtel II. The most significant federal development was the divestiture by AT&T of its local operating companies, and the requirement that the divested companies provide AT&T's competitors with equal access to local exchange facilities and customers.

The state policy in favor of long distance competition was embodied in the March 1982 enactment of Chapter 82-51. That law abolished the LECs' statutory monopoly on long distance service and allowed the Commission to grant certificates for competitive intrastate long distance service. That amendment evidenced a "clear legislative intent to foster competition" and represented the Legislature's "fundamental and primary policy decision that there be competition in long distance telephone services" in Florida. Microtel, Inc. v. Florida Public Service
Commission, 464 So.2d 1189, 1191 (Fla. 1985) ("Microtel I").

The Commission implemented this legislative policy by certifying competitive long distance companies beginning in late 1982. However, the Commission withheld authority for those companies to provide short-haul long distance telephone calls except by reselling LEC-provided service --

first by a "temporary" prohibition on service within LATAs, then by an "interim" prohibition on service within EAEAs.

In <u>Microtel II</u> this Court upheld the Commission's authority to create interim toll monopolies as a way of making an orderly transition "from a total monopoly on all services to monopoly in local services only." The Commission did not then claim authority to maintain toll monopoly areas on a permanent basis, and the Court expressly refrained from deciding the Commission's authority to do so. The Commission's recent decision creating permanent toll monopolies puts that issue squarely before the Court.

By making the long distance monopoly areas permanent, the Commission has exceeded it statutory authority to manage a transition to competition. Instead, it has substituted its judgment about the appropriate long term public policy regarding long distance competition for the judgment made by the Legislature. That is not the role the Legislature gave to the Commission nor, in light of the constitutional prohibition on delegation of legislative power, is it a role that could be given to the Commission.

Even if the Chapter 364 could constitutionally be construed to grant the Commission authority to establish permanent TMAs, the Commission's order still must be overturned. The proponents of TMAs failed to carry the burden of proving that permanent retention of toll monopolies is required by the public interest.

#### ARGUMENT

# I. The Commission Lacks Statutory Authority to Create Permanent Toll Monopoly Areas.

As in its earlier "interim" toll monopoly order, the Commission has neglected to state the basis on which it claims statutory authority to establish toll monopoly areas. Presumably, it still relies on its authority under Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, to grant certificates of authority to competitive long distance carriers "with modifications in the public interest" as the basis for an implied power to limit, by establishing TMAs, the long distance authority granted to all IXCs.5/

Because there is no <u>express</u> authority for the Commission to establish TMAs, this Court must determine whether a construction of Section 364.335(4) that gives the Commission implied power to do so is:

- (i) appropriate in light of the legislative mandate in favor of long distance competition; and
- (ii) consistent with the constitutional prohibition against delegation of legislative power.

MCI submits that it is neither, and that the Commission's TMA decision must therefore be overturned.

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{5}{}$  That is the authority relied on by the Commission's General Counsel in its Answer Brief in Microtel II as the basis for establishing interim TMAs.

A. The Legislature Has Made the Fundamental Public Policy Decision that Long Distance Competition is In the Public Interest.

Prior to 1982, the Legislature had created statutory monopolies for both local service and long distance service in Florida. These monopolies were implemented by prohibiting the certification of any telephone company whose services would compete with or duplicate those of an existing company, unless the certificate of the existing company was first amended to eliminate the competition.

\$364.335(4), Fla. Stat. (1981).

In 1982, the Legislature abolished the statutory monopoly for long distance service by enacting Chapter 82-51, Laws of Florida. That law amended Section 364.335(4) to permit the Commission to grant certificates to competitive long distance carriers. 6/However, the law made no change in the monopoly status of local exchange service.

This change was accomplished by adding the words "local exchange" to Section 364.335(4). The amendments made to that section by Chapter 82-51 are shown below:

<sup>. . .</sup> The commission shall not grant a certificate for a proposed telephone company, or for the extension of an existing telephone company, which will be in competition with, or which will duplicate the <a href="Local exchange">Local exchange</a> services provided by, any other telephone company unless it first determines that the existing facilities are inadequate to meet the reasonable needs of the public and it first amends the certificate of such other telephone company to remove the basis for competition or duplication of services.

This Court has had two prior occasions to consider the effect of the 1982 amendment on the Commission's regulatory jurisdiction. In Microtel I, the first company to be certified as a competitive long distance carrier [i.e. Microtel] urged that the subsequent certification of other long distance carriers should be denied or delayed. In rejecting those arguments, this Court concluded that the 1982 amendment reflected a "clear legislative intent to foster competition" and that "the legislature [has] made the 'fundamental and primary policy decision' that there be competition in long distance telephone service." 464 So.2d at 1191.

The Court's second consideration came in Microtel II, in which a number of interexchange carriers challenged the Commission's statutory authority to create interim toll monopoly areas. In upholding the Commission's action, the Court reaffirmed its belief that "the legislature has made the fundamental and primary decision that there will be competition in long distance services." 483 So.2d at 419. However, the Court concluded that the Legislature had not mandated "instant, unlimited competition in all long distance services," but had authorized the Commission to manage an orderly transition "from total monopoly on all services to monopoly in local services only." Id. at 418, 419. Because the Commission was not then claiming the authority to maintain permanent toll monopolies, the Court expressly refrained from examining the merits of that issue.

Now, over four years after the Legislature announced the public policy of the state in favor of long distance competition, the Commission has made its toll monopoly areas permanent. There is no longer the "orderly transition to full competition on long distance service" envisioned by the Court in Microtel II. Id. at 419. The transition stopped halfway.

This Court's conclusion that the Legislature has made the fundamental and primary policy decision in favor of full long distance competition (retaining a monopoly only for local exchange service) was not a surprise to the Commission. This construction of Section 364.335 had specifically been urged by the Commission in its Motion to Dismiss the appeal in Case No. 64,801 (one of the cases comprising Microtel I):7/

[Subsection 364.335(4), F.S. (1983)] limits the statutorily mandated monopoly solely to local exchange telephone service, thereby opening interexchange and other intrastate services to full competition. (S.A. 2).

In the same Motion, the Commission also stated that:

The present provisions of Chapter 364, Florida Statutes, contemplate competition in the provision of long distance telephone service within the state. At the time of the adoption, all proponents

Although this motion is not part of the record in this case, it is in this court's record in a prior case involving the same parties and the construction of the same statutory amendments.

of the legislative revisions. . . intended the changes to initiate full competition in intrastate telecommunications other than local exchange service. (emphasis added) (S.A. 4-5)

In <u>Microtel I</u>, the Commission argued that the statute meant full competition. In <u>Microtel II</u>, it argued that the statute meant full competition, after a transition period. In this case, it argues that the statute means whatever degree of competition the Commission decides is in the public interest.

What started as an appropriate transition has turned into an inappropriate usurpation of legislative power and frustration of legislative policy. The Commission no longer deserves the benefit of the doubt. The Court should now hold that the Commission lacks implied statutory authority to maintain permanent monopoly areas, and that its order purporting to do so is inconsistent with the public policy of the state.

B. An Interpretation of Chapter 364 That Gives
The Commission Authority to Establish
Permanent Toll Monopoly Areas Would
Unconstitutionally Delegate Legislative Power
to the Commission.

In <u>Microtel II</u>, this Court was not required to decide whether the Commission's interpretation of Section 364.335 would violate the constitutional prohibition against delegation of legislative power. The Commission then was

not claiming authority to draw permanent toll monopoly areas, but only to manage a transition from monopoly to competition. 483 So.2d at 419. Because the Commission is now claiming expanded authority, the unconstitutional delegation issue is squarely before the Court.

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