FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA SID J. WHITE

DEC 15 1988

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By: MO
Deputy Clerk

U. S. SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS
COMPANY,

Appellants,

vs.

CASE NO. 69,169

JOHN R. MARKS, et al.,

Appellees.

MICROTEL, INC.,

Appellants,

vs.

CASE NO. 69,159

JOHN R. MARKS, et al.,

Appellees.

On Appeal From The Florida Public Service Commission

**ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE,
UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY OF FLORIDA**

Alan N. Berg
General Attorney
United Telephone Company of Florida
Post Office Box 5000
Altamonte Springs, FL 32715-5000
(305) 889-6018

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

United supports the FPSC Order under review in this appeal.

The Appellants argue that the FPSC has exceeded its authority by establishing permanent TTMA's. This argument is based on the conclusion reached by the Appellants that the TTMA's established by the FPSC in Order No. 13750, and retained in Order No. 16343, are permanent. None of the Appellants' briefs cite, or quote, language from Order No. 16343 to support their conclusion that the toll transmission monopoly areas are permanent.

The Order does not support such a conclusion. Almost every reference in Order No. 16343 to retention of the TTMA's contains a time qualifier. Nowhere does the Order refer to permanent retention of TTMA's.

This Court, in Microtel II, supra, decided that the Legislature had made a fundamental and primary decision that there would be competition in intrastate long distance telephone service. This Court also stated that it did not read the statute (Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes) or Microtel, Inc. v. Florida Public Service Commission, 464 So.2d 1189 (Fla. 1985) (hereinafter referred to as Microtel I) so expansively as to require instant, unlimited competition in all long distance services. (Microtel II, at page 418).

The FPSC, in accordance with its statutory responsibilities, is attempting at this time to achieve several goals simultaneously. It must implement equal access to competing long distance companies, while minimizing the cost of the transition. It must also maintain the universality and quality of service. Further, it must provide for compensation to local telephone

companies for use of their facilities in originating and completing long distance calls. In addition, the FPSC has an open docket examining the appropriate method of moving local telephone companies from pooling of intraLATA toll revenues to a system where those revenues are billed and the revenues kept by the LEC or local telephone companies providing service. The FPSC is also examining proposals to provide competition at the local service level in several dockets. The FPSC is also examining the deloading of non-traffic sensitive costs from access charges. All of these dockets indicate that the telecommunications market is in a state of transition. Based on this transitional nature of the telecommunications market place, the FPSC has decided, based on evidence presented at the hearing, that it was in the public interest "at this time" to retain toll transmission monopoly areas.

The Appellants also argue that even if the retention of toll transmission monopoly areas is authorized, that the FPSC's actions are not supported by competent substantial evidence.

The record is replete with evidence of adverse financial impact presented by the local telephone companies. This evidence was questioned by the IXCs in their testimony and by cross-examination. It is the responsibility of the trier of fact to resolve disputed evidence, and the conclusions reached should not be overturned on appeal if they comport with the essential requirements of law. The Appellants are in essence requesting that this Court reweigh the evidence, and reach the conclusion they supported in the hearing below.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION HAS NOT
EXCEEDED ITS STATUTORY AUTHORITY BY ALLOWING
TOLL TRANSMISSION MONOPOLY AREAS TO CONTINUE
DURING A TRANSITION PERIOD.

Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, was amended by Chapter 82-51, Section 3, Laws of Florida, as follows:

. . . The commission shall not grant a certificate for a proposed telephone company, or for the extension of an existing telephone company, which will be in competition with, or ~~which will~~ duplicate the local exchange services provided by, any other telephone company unless it first determines that the existing facilities are inadequate to meet the reasonable needs of the public and it first amends the certificate of such other telephone company to remove the basis for competition or duplication of services.

In Microtel II, supra, this Court stated that the above quoted changes were "[i]n apparent anticipation of the forthcoming consent judgment in the AT&T case and motivated by a desire to promote competitive long distance service within Florida . . ." (at page 417).

In Microtel II, supra, the appellants argued that the FPSC had no authority under Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, to grant toll monopolies on long distance service. The appellants cited Microtel I, supra, wherein this Court concluded that the legislature had made a policy decision that there be competition in long distance service.

In Microtel II, supra, this Court rejected the appellants'

position and their reading of Microtel I, and cited three reasons:

1) The FPSC plan contained a very large measure of competition on intrastate long distance service, and the toll monopoly areas were limited in scope;

2) The FPSC plan contemplated reexamination of the toll monopoly concept in September, 1986, and the concept was limited in time; and

3) Section 364.335(4), as amended, provides that the FPSC may grant a certificate in the public interest; it does not mandate that certificates be granted contrary to the public interest. (at page 418).

The Court concluded in Microtel II, supra, that the Legislature had made the fundamental and primary decision that there would be competition in intrastate toll, but the Court did not read Section 364.335(4) and Microtel I so expansively as to require instant, unlimited competition in all long distance services. (at page 418).

This Court stated that it did not read the Orders of the FPSC under review in Microtel II as contemplating, nor did it understand it to be the FPSC's position, that toll monopolies would continue beyond an interim period during which the transition was made from total monopoly on all services to monopoly in local services only. (at page 419).

A. Are toll transmission monopoly areas limited in scope?

No change was made in the Order under review in the scope of competition that existed at the time of Microtel II. The Appellants have advanced no argument that competition is more

restricted. The TTMA's are still limited in scope.

B. Are toll transmission monopoly areas limited in time?

The major argument of the Appellants is that the toll transmission monopoly concept is no longer limited in time. The Appellants describe the toll transmission monopolies as "permanent." Nothing in the Order under review of the record supports such a conclusion.

The first mention in Order No. 16343 of the FPSC finding that TTMA's should be continued appears at page 4 of the Order, and states:

Virtually all parties recognize that the industry is in a state of transition from the ubiquitous regulatory environment of yesterday to the competitive environment of the present and future. The present transitional nature of the market, in conjunction with the factors discussed below, dictate a careful analysis of today's conditions. The result of this analysis is our finding that retention of TMA's is in the public interest at present.
(emphasis added)

The time qualifier "at present", and the emphasis on the transitional nature of the telecommunications industry, clearly contradict the permanence alleged by the Appellants.

References in Order No. 16343, at page 5, indicate steps the local telephone companies have taken to meet competition, and the FPSC concludes that: "It is clear that the LECs have taken a variety of actions to adjust to competition." The FPSC also found that:

The threshold question is not whether sufficient time has elapsed to allow the LECs to adjust to competition, but whether the LECs have had the latitude within the regulatory confines of Chapter 364, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-4, Florida Administrative Code, to

institute changes enabling them to be competitive with the IXCs in the provision of intraEAEA toll service. In short, we find that since Order No. 13750 was issued, the LECs have done as much as possible to adjust to competition given the present regulatory environment.

This statement confirms that the local telephone companies have done as much as possible to adjust to a competitive environment, but are not yet ready to compete for intraEAEA toll service due to regulatory constraints. In other words, the transition period contemplated by the FPSC, and acknowledged by this Court in Microtel II, is not yet complete.

Other quotes from Order No. 16343 illustrate that the Order does not intend to create permanent toll monopoly areas. At page 9, the Order states: "Our review of the record indicates that it continues to be desirable to allow only the LECs to provide intraEAEA transmission facilities." (Emphasis added). Also on page 9, the FPSC summarizes the testimony, and states the local telephone companies' (except Centel's) position that "competition would continue to flourish if TMAs were retained at least temporarily." In the concluding paragraphs beginning on page 15, the FPSC states:

In Order No. 13750, issued October 5, 1984, we viewed TMAs as an interim measure, to be reviewed prior to September 1, 1986. That review is now complete. We believed that by this time, NTS costs would have been de-loaded from access charges, the LECs would have been billing and keeping toll charges, and private-line pricing would have been resolved. These events have not as yet taken place. As the industry exists today, it is not in the public interest to abolish TMAS.

The clear implication is that when NTS costs, bill and keep,

and private line rate restructuring (all open dockets at the FPSC) have been resolved that it would then be appropriate to eliminate TTMA's. The FPSC thought that those items would be resolved by September 1, 1986, but misestimated the time in which those goals could be accomplished. The misestimation does not make TTMA's permanent, it merely retains TTMA's until such time as those items the FPSC thought would be resolved by September 1, 1986, are resolved:

The Order states, at page 15, that:

Nothing in this decision precludes any interested party from coming forward with a showing of significantly changed circumstances which would warrant the abolition of TTMA's. Technology and regulatory changes may dictate a modification of this decision at some point in the future. We will not speculate on the timing of these changes. As Order No. 13750 demonstrates, predicting the timing of future events often proves a mistake.

Rather than to again estimate the appropriate time for review, and set a definite time for review based on that estimate, as it did in Order No. 13750, the FPSC allowed any interested party to decide when further review was appropriate. The fact that no definite time was set does not establish permanent TTMA's. TTMA's were continued for a transitional or interim period, not made permanent as alleged by the IXCs. The Appellants have pointed to no portion of the Order which supports their allegation of permanence.

C. Are toll transmission monopoly areas in the public interest?

The FPSC has much broader responsibilities in regard to telecommunications service in the State of Florida than planning

the implementation of toll competition within the EAEAs. Docket 820537-TP involves only a part of the FPSC responsibilities, but in that Docket alone, the FPSC attempted to accomplish significant goals in a time of rapid change in the telecommunications industry.

In Docket No. 820537-TP, the FPSC's primary goal has been to set access charges that would adequately compensate the local telephone companies for use of their local exchange facilities for originating and terminating interexchange carrier traffic and to provide incentives for competition while maintaining universal service. This Court recognized the difficulty of the FPSC's task in Microtel II when it stated:

Among the difficulties faced by the communications industry and PSC as a result of the AT&T divestiture and the enactment of Chapter 82-51 is how to provide customers with equal access to competing long distance telephone companies, while minimizing the cost of the transition and maintaining universality and quality of service and concomitantly, how to compensate local telephone companies for the use of their local exchange facilities in completing long distance calls. (Footnotes omitted, at page 418).

Universality of service and quality of service are goals which reflect the public interest responsibilities of the FPSC. Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, provides that the FPSC may grant certificates in the public interest.

The FPSC has many objectives in that portion of telephone service under consideration in Docket No. 820537-TP, all of which must be resolved with public interest considerations at the forefront.

In the case at issue, the FPSC must respond to the

legislative directive to implement intrastate toll competition, but must do so in light of the legislative directive to act in the public interest. The FPSC's plan as set forth in Order No. 13750 was described as a "well reasoned and carefully crafted response to the legislative direction and to the public interest," in Microtel II. (at page 418-419). The only difference between the plan set forth in Order No. 13750, and the Order under review in this case is that the timetable has had to be extended because what the FPSC had hoped to accomplish by the review date of September 1, 1986, was not accomplished by that date.

Whether the extension of the timetable is in the public interest is the question which must be answered. That question is answered affirmatively in Order No. 16343.

At page 4 of the Order, the FPSC states:

The "public interest" is an amorphous idea driven by a myriad of factors. Some of these factors we consider important include natural monopoly theory, the existence of competition, the effect of our decision on local exchange rates, ubiquitous service and the availability of reasonably priced long-distance service for all end-users in Florida. In addition, we are also concerned with the effect that the intraEAEA facilities-based competition will have on the LECs' revenues and their ability to earn a reasonable rate of return.

In Order No. 16343, the FPSC then examines each of the factors listed.

In regard to the local telephone companies' efforts to adjust to competition, it found based on the evidence that the local telephone companies had taken a variety of actions to adjust to competition during the time period between the issuance of Order No. 13750 and the time of the hearings. The FPSC concluded that

the local telephone companies have done as much as possible to adjust to competition given the present regulatory environment. (Order No. 16343, page 5).

The FPSC next examined the revenue impact of eliminating TTMs. It found that revenue losses to the local telephone companies would occur if TTMs were eliminated, but that it was difficult, if not impossible, to quantify the impact. The Order lists five variables which must be accounted for in estimate of net revenue impact:

- 1) The amount of MTS and WATS traffic that would be taken from the local telephone companies and become feature group (FG) D, FG A, and FG B access;

- 2) The amount of traffic that would become special access;

- 3) The particular routes on which IXCs plan to compete;

- 4) The toll rates for those routes;

- 5) The cost savings to the local telephone companies from not carrying the lost traffic.

The assumptions necessary to provide dollar amounts for each of these variables would have to be based on assumptions which were hotly contested by the parties to the Docket during the hearing. The FPSC concluded that, although the exact revenue losses could not be calculated, revenue losses to the local telephone companies would occur.

In regard to the effects of eliminating toll transmission monopoly areas in the current environment, the FPSC stated:

Significant fixed investment is necessary for the LECs to provide telecommunications services to customers. The large fixed plant creates the need for stable revenue sources.

Without stable revenues, the financial viability and ultimately the availability of telephone service is threatened. (at page 6).

The local telephone companies have three sources of revenue: local service, their own toll service, and access charges. These sources of revenue are inextricably intertwined. A loss of revenue from any one source must be made up from the others for the local telephone companies to continue to maintain a stable source of revenues.

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